Visually Impaired OLder people's Exercise programme for falls prevention (VIOLET): a feasibility study

Nicola Adams, 1* Dawn Skelton, 2 Cathy Bailey, 1 Denise Howel, 3 Dorothy Coe, 1 Rosy Lampitt, 4 Jennifer Wilkinson, 4 Tony Fouweather, 3 Lex D de Jong, 2 Sheena Gawler, 1 Vincent Deary, 1 Joanne Gray, 1 Heather Waterman 5 and Steve W Parry 6

Declared competing interests of authors: Dawn Skelton receives personal fees from Later Life Training Ltd outside the submitted work and is a Director of Later Life Training, a company that runs as a not-for-profit organisation delivering Falls Management Exercise (FaME) Postural Stability Instructor (PSI) training to health and fitness professionals across the UK.

Published February 2019 DOI: 10.3310/phr07040

Plain English summary

The VIOLET feasibility study

Public Health Research 2019; Vol. 7: No. 4

DOI: 10.3310/phr07040

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

¹Faculty of Health and Life Sciences, Northumbria University, Newcastle upon Tyne, UK

²Institute of Applied Health Research, School of Health and Life Sciences, Centre for Living, Glasgow Caledonian University, Glasgow, UK

³Institute of Health and Society, Newcastle University, Newcastle upon Tyne, UK

⁴Newcastle Clinical Trials Unit, Newcastle University, Newcastle upon Tyne, UK

⁵Healthcare Sciences, Cardiff University, Cardiff, UK

⁶Institute for Ageing and Health, Newcastle University, Newcastle upon Tyne, UK

^{*}Corresponding author nicola.adams@northumbria.ac.uk

Plain English summary

The VIOLET study took an exercise class that was designed to help avoid falls and reduce fear of falling and adapted it so that it could be offered to older people with eyesight difficulties.

We took guidance from older people with eyesight difficulties. This helped to plan a pilot study in which one group of older people with eyesight difficulties did 12 weekly 1-hour exercise classes and another group carried on with normal life. We collected information from both groups at three separate time points. The information included measurements about fear of falling, activity, loneliness, depression and thoughts about health and the future. Some people also talked for longer about taking part in the exercise classes and the investigation.

A total of 33 people took part in the exercise classes and 31 continued with normal life. Information at all three time points was collected from almost all people. Those doing the exercise classes were also asked to practise the exercises at home for 2 hours per week. The total amount of practice varied, with most people doing less than 1 hour (median 50 minutes) per week.

Most people had a low or moderate level of concern over falling, which did not change. There was little change in the levels of activity, depression, loneliness or thoughts about health and the future. The people with eyesight difficulties who participated liked feeling useful and meeting other people but felt it would be better if more information was given about how the exercises helped. They, and those who delivered the exercise class, thought that another person should give support, and that the class could be made more challenging. It proved possible to change the exercise classes, although it was felt that those with eyesight difficulties could go to classes already offered. We learned lessons about ways of recruiting more people and identifying those with a greater falls risk who might benefit in the future.

Public Health Research

ISSN 2050-4381 (Print)

ISSN 2050-439X (Online)

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

The full PHR archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/phr. Print-on-demand copies can be purchased from the report pages of the NIHR Journals Library website: www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

Criteria for inclusion in the Public Health Research journal

Reports are published in *Public Health Research* (PHR) if (1) they have resulted from work for the PHR programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

Reviews in *Public Health Research* are termed 'systematic' when the account of the search, appraisal and synthesis methods (to minimise biases and random errors) would, in theory, permit the replication of the review by others.

PHR programme

The Public Health Research (PHR) programme, part of the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR), evaluates public health interventions, providing new knowledge on the benefits, costs, acceptability and wider impacts of non-NHS interventions intended to improve the health of the public and reduce inequalities in health. The scope of the programme is multi-disciplinary and broad, covering a range of interventions that improve public health. The Public Health Research programme also complements the NIHR Health Technology Assessment programme which has a growing portfolio evaluating NHS public health interventions.

For more information about the PHR programme please visit the website: http://www.nets.nihr.ac.uk/programmes/phr

This report

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the PHR programme as project number 12/181/07. The contractual start date was in September 2014. The final report began editorial review in January 2017 and was accepted for publication in July 2017. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. The PHR editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' report and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the final report document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this report.

This report presents independent research funded by the National Institute for Health Research (NIHR). The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, NETSCC, the PHR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the authors, those of the NHS, the NIHR, NETSCC, the PHR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2019. This work was produced by Adams et al. under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This issue may be freely reproduced for the purposes of private research and study and extracts (or indeed, the full report) may be included in professional journals provided that suitable acknowledgement is made and the reproduction is not associated with any form of advertising. Applications for commercial reproduction should be addressed to: NIHR Journals Library, National Institute for Health Research, Evaluation, Trials and Studies Coordinating Centre, Alpha House, University of Southampton Science Park, Southampton SO16 7NS, UK.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Prepress Projects Ltd, Perth, Scotland (www.prepress-projects.co.uk).

NIHR Journals Library Editor-in-Chief

Professor Ken Stein Chair of HTA and EME Editorial Board and Professor of Public Health, University of Exeter Medical School, UK

NIHR Journals Library Editors

Professor Ken Stein Chair of HTA and EME Editorial Board and Professor of Public Health, University of Exeter Medical School, UK

Professor Andrée Le May Chair of NIHR Journals Library Editorial Group (HS&DR, PGfAR, PHR journals)

Professor Matthias Beck Professor of Management, Cork University Business School, Department of Management and Marketing, University College Cork, Ireland

Dr Tessa Crilly Director, Crystal Blue Consulting Ltd, UK

Dr Eugenia Cronin Senior Scientific Advisor, Wessex Institute, UK

Dr Peter Davidson Consultant Advisor, Wessex Institute, University of Southampton, UK

Ms Tara Lamont Scientific Advisor, NETSCC, UK

Dr Catriona McDaid Senior Research Fellow, York Trials Unit, Department of Health Sciences, University of York, UK

Professor William McGuire Professor of Child Health, Hull York Medical School, University of York, UK

Professor Geoffrey Meads Professor of Wellbeing Research, University of Winchester, UK

Professor John Norrie Chair in Medical Statistics, University of Edinburgh, UK

Professor John Powell Consultant Clinical Adviser, National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE), UK

Professor James Raftery Professor of Health Technology Assessment, Wessex Institute, Faculty of Medicine, University of Southampton, UK

Dr Rob Riemsma Reviews Manager, Kleijnen Systematic Reviews Ltd, UK

Professor Helen Roberts Professor of Child Health Research, UCL Great Ormond Street Institute of Child Health, UK

Professor Jonathan Ross Professor of Sexual Health and HIV, University Hospital Birmingham, UK

Professor Helen Snooks Professor of Health Services Research, Institute of Life Science, College of Medicine, Swansea University, UK

Professor Jim Thornton Professor of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences, University of Nottingham, UK

Professor Martin Underwood Warwick Clinical Trials Unit, Warwick Medical School, University of Warwick, UK

Please visit the website for a list of editors: www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/about/editors

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk